Public Document Pack

Date:
Our ref:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

18 April 2022
Cabinet/Agenda
Charles Hungwe
(01843) 577207
charles.hungwe@officer.thanet.gov.uk

CABINET
28 APRIL 2022
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held at 7.00 pm on Thursday, 28 April 2022 in the Council
Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.
Membership:
Councillor Ashbee (Chair); Councillors: Pugh, J Bayford, R Bayford, Kup and D Saunders

AGENDA
Item
No

Subject

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a Member
declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve the summary of recommendations and decisions of the Cabinet meeting held
on 17 March 2022, copy attached.

4.

ASSET MANAGEMENT - OLD TOWN HALL (Pages 11 - 14)

5.

TOWN CENTRE PARKING REVIEW UPDATE (Pages 15 - 22)

6.

MARGATE LEVELLING UP FUND: THIRD PARTY GRANT (Pages 23 - 44)

7.

MARGATE TOWN DEAL: PROJECT GRANT TO THIRD PARTIES (Pages 45 - 66)

8.

EXECUTIVE APPOINTED OUTSIDE BODY - MANSTON SKILLS AND EMPLOYMENT
(MSE) BOARD (Pages 67 - 70)

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000
Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906
DX 30555 (Margate)
www.thanet.gov.uk
Chief Executive: Madeline Homer

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must
declare the existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the
matter, or when the interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda
item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3
CABINET
Minutes of the meeting held on 17 March 2022 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, Council
Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.

797.

Present:

Councillor Ash Ashbee (Chair); Councillors Pugh, J Bayford,
R Bayford, Kup and D Saunders

In Attendance:

Councillors Crittenden, Everitt and Whitehead

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies made at the meeting.

798.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

799.

MINUTES OF EXTRAORDINARY MEETING
Councillor Ashbee proposed, Councillor Bob Bayford seconded and Members agreed the
minutes as a correct record of the extraordinary meeting held on 22 February 2022.

800.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Councillor Ashbee proposed, Councillor Bob Bayford seconded and Members agreed the
minutes as a correct record of the meeting held on 27 January 2022.

801.

ADOPTION OF REVISED TENANCY STRATEGY & TENANCY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY
Cabinet considered proposal for the adoption of the Tenancy Strategy and Tenancy
Management Strategy. Adoption of this strategy would fulfil the requirements of the
Localism Act 2011. The Council was required to develop and publish a Tenancy Strategy
setting out the Council’s preferred position on the type of tenancies granted by registered
providers of social housing in the district. The strategy was advisory and used by social
landlords as guidance.
The act also required the Council, as a social housing landlord itself, to produce a
Management Policy which set out how Thanet District Council will operationally grant and
manage tenancies. The Tenancy Strategy and Management Policy, last published by
Thanet District Council in 2018, needed updating.
The Tenancy Strategy set out the council’s position on the use of fixed term tenancies,
affordable and social rents, mutual exchanges, succession rights and arrangements for
dealing with tenancy fraud. In most respects the strategy recommended remained the
same as that taken in 2018. One significant difference related to the use of fixed term
tenancies. In light of national and local changes in attitude to their use, the cabinet report
recommended that they should not be used as a preferred tenancy type.
One of the original objectives of fixed term tenancies was to enable social housing
providers to make the best use of the social housing stock, and not renew tenancies
when households no longer had a need for that home. In reality however this had not led
to an increased turn-over of tenants, and social landlords had not used the legislation to
end tenancies in this way.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
Experiences from across social housing providers, including TDC, had identified a
number of problems with the use of fixed term tenancies. These included:






Tenants feeling concerned and anxious about their futures based on their
tenure type;
Lack of investment by families in their home and community because they feel
they will have to move on;
Little impact in terms of stock turnover and vacancies;
Potential conflict with the Government priority to give tenants a stronger voice;
Significant administrative costs involved with the scheme particularly where
the majority of tenancies are set to continue.

Council had consulted with the tenants about the proposed new strategy. A small number
of tenants contacted the council as a result of the consultation and expressed support for
the proposal to end the use of fixed term tenancies.
Councillor Whitehead spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1.
Councillor Jill Bayford proposed, Councillor Bob Bayford seconded and Cabinet agreed
the following recommendations:

802.

1.

The contents of the draft Tenancy Strategy;

2.

The contents of the draft Tenancy Management Policy.

BUDGET MONITORING 2021-22: REPORT NO.3
Cabinet discussed the Quarter 3 Budget Monitoring Report which covered quarter three
general fund revenue and capital, reflecting the latest forecasts in the light of the covid
pandemic, together with the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and was the third budget
monitor for 2021/22. Quarter 3 forecast was for a £1.95m overspend on this year’s
budget. The HRA forecast was for a £226,000 surplus against the budget.
Councillor Everitt spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1.
Councillor David Saunders proposed, Councillor Bob Bayford seconded and Cabinet
agreed the following:
1.

That Cabinet notes the following:
(i) The General Fund revenue budget 2021-22 forecast position;
(ii) The General Fund Capital Programme 2021-22 forecast position;
(iii) The Housing Revenue Account position;
(iv) The anticipated funding solution to the budget gap.

803.

2.

The 2021-22 Capital Programme budget adjustments and virements, numbered 1
and 2, as set out in section 5.3 and Annex 1 to the Cabinet report;

3.

To recommend to Council for approval the 2021-22 supplementary capital budget,
numbered 3 as set out in section 5.4 and Annex 1 to the Cabinet report.

ADOPTION OF THE FOLLOWING POLICIES: ASB, RECHARGEABLE WORKS,
INCOME COLLECTION, AIDS AND ADAPTATIONS
Members discussed proposals for, four policies covering aspects of the council’s tenant
and leaseholder service. The four policies are:
 Income recovery, including enforcement and evictions;

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
 Rechargeable works orders;
 Antisocial behaviour;
 Aids and Adaptations.
The policies had been reviewed by the Thanet Tenants and Leaseholders Group, the
Housing Cabinet Advisory Group and the Overview and Scrutiny Panel. As key policies
they were important documents that set out the standards that the Council will provide
these services to, for tenants and leaseholders. It was important that tenants and
leaseholders knew what to expect from the service. The policies also provided officers
with the tools they needed to enable them to carry out their jobs.
The policies were set up to be easy to understand and were as succinct as possible.
Some of the wording would be revised to remove any words that might be used to
stigmatise individuals. These policies would then be published on the council’s website
and become accessible to tenants and leaseholders.
Councillor Whitehead spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1.
Councillor Jill Bayford proposed, Councillor Bob Bayford seconded and Cabinet agreed
to adopt and publish the four policies.
804.

TENANT AND LEASEHOLDER SERVICES KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (TLS
KPI) QUARTER 3
Cabinet discussed the performance report for Quarter 3 and covered council’s progress
on tenant and leaseholder health and safety compliance and provided an update on the
overall performance of the tenant and leaseholder service. Cabinet was pleased to
announce that the regulatory notice that was placed on the Council in 2019 was removed
on the 24 February 2022. This had been accomplished by the hard work and dedication
of the entire team, who had pulled together to improve the position on Landlord
Compliance.
The performance report showed that most work streams were operating as business as
usual, but two areas that were still in recovery were electrical safety and fire risk
assessment actions. The team had a robust action plan in place to resolve by the end of
March 2022 and were making good progress. More widely, the team’s performance
remained steady in most areas for Quarter 3. The planned works programme was
progressing as expected with only 2 projects that were experiencing delays:
 At Royal Crescent, in Ramsgate, there had been a delay with the tender
documents due to the complexity of the works required and the need to carry
out additional inspections and surveys. It was anticipated being ready to procure
for this project in April 2022.

 At Churchfields, in Margate, a fire risk assessment identified a lack of
compartmentation in the loft space. This therefore had to be resolved as an
emergency project and the compartmentation works were being completed now.
The planned project for new bin stores and parking that was approved by
Cabinet in November will be planned into the 2022/23 programme.
The report also identified areas of performance that needed to improve. One key area for
improvement was the turnaround time for void properties. Disappointingly for the team
this had not improved since transition. To address this they had restructured to create a
dedicated voids team and changed the way they work with their contractors to complete
void works. Further work to improve turnaround times was taking place during Q4 as the
team streamlined processes, systems and communication.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3
The rent arrears position had declined in Quarter 3 when compared to Quarter 2. This
was an area that had previously been improving since transition. However, the position
was better than their position at Quarter 3 last year; and comparison with previous years
and other providers showed that an increase in arrears during Quarter 3, which included
the Christmas period, was not unusual.
Councillor Jill Bayford proposed, Councillor Kup seconded and Cabinet noted the
performance report.
805.

RAMSGATE CONSERVATION AREA APPRAISAL
The Leader proposed to recommend to Full Council for the adoption of the Ramsgate
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan. This followed a public consultation
of the documents, which were produced as part of the Ramsgate Heritage Action Zone
(the “HAZ”) work, at the end of last year.
Since being designated in 1970 and subsequently extended 5 times, there had not been
an appraisal of the Conservation area in Ramsgate. The appraisal and plan were
produced from the work of the local community and supporting consultants, to provide a
highly detailed evaluation of the features and character that made the Ramsgate
Conservation area so important.
This piece of work had been ongoing across different administrations of the Council, and
Cabinet thanked the local community, especially the Ramsgate Society and Ramsgate
Heritage and Design Forum, whose voluntary work made this appraisal possible. The
report outlined the background behind the HAZ and the appraisal, provided a summary of
the structure of the appraisal and the key recommendations from the management plan
produced for all stakeholders.
The report outlined the results of the consultation which occurred between 1 November
and 13 December last year, which was supportive of the appraisal and management
plan, as well as the guidance for climate change adaptation and draft conservation area
owners guidance. Points of concern and suggestions for future heritage designation and
projects had also been outlined and these points would be used to inform the Council’s
work going forward.
The document would now form an important reference document to positively aid
residents and developers when they were looking to carry out works in the Ramsgate
Conservation Area. It would also provide evidence to support the planning decisions of
the Council and a framework for future heritage initiatives.
Councillor Crittenden spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1.
Councillor Ashbee proposed, Councillor Saunders seconded and Cabinet agreed that the
Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan, and associated documents, as
appended to the Cabinet report, be agreed and moved to Full Council for adoption and
published by 1 May 2022.

806.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
Councillor Ashbee proposed, Councillor Pugh seconded and Cabinet agreed that the
public and press be excluded from the meeting for agenda item 11 as it contains exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 1, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).
Live streaming of the meeting was ended and Cabinet went into a private session.

807.

REPORT ON EMPLOYMENT MATTERS

Page 8

Agenda Item 3

Cabinet considered the officer report and agreed a way forward.

Meeting concluded: 7.30 pm

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Asset Management - Old Town Hall
Cabinet

28 April 2022

Report Author

Stuart Longbottom, Interim Director of Property and Asset
Management

Portfolio Holder

Cllr-David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance and CllrReece Pugh, Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for Economic
Development

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Margate Central

Executive Summary:
The Council’s Corporate Statement for 2019-2023 sets out the direction of travel for the
coming years. The assets identified below represent ageing property that require repair and
capital investment but, should this be completed, it will not improve the return on income, or
fulfil any operational requirements.
Cabinet is asked to consider the assets and make a decision on the recommended way
forward.

Recommendation(s):
1. To let the property via a commercial lease, option 1 below;
2. To give delegated authority to the Director of Property, in consultation with the
Principal Surveyor to market the premises and negotiate Heads of Terms for a lease
and;
3. Give delegated authority to the Director of Law and Democracy to sign all documents
necessary to give effect to the disposal.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
Review of assets forms part of the adopted policy and corporate aims. The Council should
not retain assets unless they provide value for money or support the corporate aims and
these assets have been identified as underperforming for the Council.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
The leasing of the asset listed in this report will not only generate revenue but will also
reduce ongoing maintenance costs and reduce the risk of incurring future capital
expenditure.
Legal
A letting via a formal lease will involve the advertising of the property in line with appropriate
regulations and the award of a lease agreement to a new tenant. Otherwise, the proposal
has no legal implications.
Corporate
The Council’s Corporate Statement sets out its commitment to ‘Maximise the return on our
assets and services’. This recommendation will be supporting the Councils Corporate
Statement for 2018 -2023.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: ●

To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

The freehold sales will have no impact under the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector
Equality Duty. Transfers to benefit the community will support our commitment under these
acts to continue to provide inclusive community facilities.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●

Growth

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Thanet Council is committed to an asset management strategy to review and renew
underperforming land and property in order to achieve its corporate aims.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
1.3

The property and land below have been fully appraised and are considered suitable
for letting via commercial lease.

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

Old Town Hall, Market Place, Margate, CT9 1XZ

2.2

The building is a two story structure with a balustraded parapet and sashes with
pediments above. A Victorian cast iron bus shelter is attached to the ground floor of
the building. This shelter has been used as a tea stall in recent years. The
courtroom's interior features some fine C18 overmantels salvaged from demolished
buildings. The building is Grade II listed and is not DDA compliant.

2.3

The building is now unoccupied and so is not heated or ventilated. There are a
number of health and safety concerns that will need to be addressed if the building is
kept untenanted:
● Urgent roof repairs are required and some internal ceilings have fallen
● The electricity supply is in poor condition
● Fire system needs review with conservation and preservation concerns
addressed alongside fire regulations
● The heating system needs review
● Updated Asbestos Survey and any remedial works as recommended
● Other conditions/repairs unknown

2.4

In addition to the necessary repairs, the building costs TDC approximately £13,500
per year in rates, utilities, maintenance and insurance.

2.5

Margate Old Town Hall is linked to Margate Museum by a bridge at first floor level.
The bridge does not serve any real purpose in line with current access and building
regulations guidelines and so will be refurbished and let with the Old Town Hall
premises.

2.6

The 5,200 square foot accommodation has been adapted over many years for
various uses and provides exceptional space for a variety of uses.

2.7

Market Place has become a hive of activity in recent years, with regeneration
attracting new boutique shops, cafes, bars, and restaurants, bringing in new
business. This regeneration is expected to continue, with an important part of that
being the restoration and effective use of this building as a focal point for activity in
the area.

2.8

A significant amount of renovation work is required to bring the building into valuable
use. The capital investment required is likely to be reflected in the lease proposal
which may be an initial rent free period, subject to negotiation. Any proposal will need
to include a comprehensive refurbishment of this historic building.

3.0

Options:

Option 1. Let the property via a commercial lease

Page 13

Agenda Item 4
3.1

Securing a new tenant for the building under a new lease agreement would provide a
new revenue stream for the Council and mitigate against the Council's empty property
costs.

3.2

The property will be offered on the open market to fulfil the requirement under the
Local Government Act 1972, which compels Councils to obtain best value whilst
being transparent and allowing all interested parties the chance to take up the lease.

3.3

The property will be marketed with a guide rent of £65,000 - £75,000 per annum. A
lease of 20 - 25 years is expected on full repairing terms and with upward rent
reviews. Terms will be the subject of negotiation and each party will cover their own
legal costs.

Option 2. Retain the property
3.4

Cabinet could choose to retain some or all of the property but should be aware that
this will result in unplanned repairs and management costs, and risk destabilising the
Medium Term Financial Strategy.

3.5

The preferred and recommended option is recorded at the beginning of this report.

Contact Officer: Andreea Plant, Interim Principal Surveyor, Estates Department
Reporting to: Stuart Longbottom (Director of Property)

Background Papers
Title:

Strategic Asset Management Plan - Thanet District Council Website or contact
propertyandassetmanagement@thanet.gov.uk.

Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy

Page 14

Agenda Item 5

TOWN CENTRE PARKING REVIEW UPDATE
Cabinet

28 April 2022

Report Author

Penny Button, Director of Neighbourhoods

Portfolio Holder

Cllr David Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Yes

Reasons for Key

Significant effect on communities

Previously Considered by Council - 12 January 2022

Ward:

All Wards

Executive Summary:
At Council on 12 January 2022 it was proposed that the growth of town centre residential
developments throughout the District are putting pressure on residential and visitor parking,
to the detriment of both residents and visitors. Thanet District Council recognises these
challenges and proposed to undertake a District wide impact assessment of increased
pressures on both on and off street parking in our town centres arising from the expansion of
town centre residential development, taking into account relevant factors such as access to
electric vehicle charging, public transport links, cycle storage and pedestrian safety
(especially at night), in order to develop solutions that support the community, recognising
the need for some groups to have access to safe personal transport due to work conditions
or disadvantage.

Recommendation(s):
That Cabinet adopt recommendation 3.1 and agree to undertake a well evidenced strategic
review of parking across the district and then develop a district wide parking strategy.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
A review of parking strategy will allow for a review of all aspects of parking, including fees.
The framework for the setting of fees and charges for car parking is set out in Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984. Fundamentally, the Act stipulates that the parking charges, either
on-street or off-street cannot be set with the sole purpose of raising revenue. As such, any

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
review should not be undertaken with the intention or objective of generating additional
income.
Any costs associated with this review can be contained within existing resources.
Legal
Whilst there is no legal implications to carrying out a review of parking within the District any
strategy or policy emerging from the review will need to comply with relevant legislation. Any
proposals will also need to be considered in line with the Traffic Management Act 2004 and
relevant regulations to ensure that they are legally compliant and enforceable.

Risk Management
The main risk to this project is failure to project manage correctly which will allow the review
to drift. This will be mitigated by using an external consultant to undertake the work ensuring
it is a stand alone piece of work. This mitigation should reduce the likelihood of this
occurring.
Corporate
The review of parking will meet all three of the Corporate objectives of Growth, Environment
and Communities. This will be achieved by reviewing provision, need and location to ensure
that the needs of business, residents, visitors and the environment are balanced.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: ●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

Corporate Priorities

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

At Council on 12 January 2022 it was proposed that the growth of town centre
residential developments throughout the District are putting pressure on residential
and visitor parking, to the detriment of both residents and visitors.

1.2

Whilst it is within the Local Plan, in accordance with National Policy and consistent
with climate change targets, that parking facilities will not be required or expected for
residential development planning applications within town centres, this does not take
into account the needs of workers, especially key workers, or residents with
disabilities, who genuinely need access to their own transport. Few of those most
affected are in a position to pay for resident parking schemes or annual season
tickets for car parks. The result has been increased pressure on what limited parking
is available in the streets surrounding our town centres and beyond.

1.3

Thanet District Council recognises these challenges and commits to undertake a
District wide impact assessment of increased pressures on both on and off street
parking in our town centres arising from the expansion of town centre residential
development, taking into account relevant factors such as access to electric vehicle
charging, public transport links, cycle storage and pedestrian safety (especially at
night), in consultation with KCC, ward councillors, other stakeholders (e.g. public
transport providers) and the public, in order to develop solutions that support the
community, recognising the need for some groups to have access to safe personal
transport due to work conditions or disadvantage.

1.4

This motion was debated and following the debate was forwarded to Cabinet.

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

Thanet District Council does not currently have a formal parking strategy and with the
existing policy due to expire shortly and the interest in all aspects of parking
restrictions across the District this motion is an ideal opportunity to expand the scope
to include a district wide review. In recent months there have been various aspects of
parking raised at council meetings including disabled parking arrangements. The
review should be a well evidenced strategic review of parking across the district
which will then lead to the development of a district wide parking strategy.

2.2

A review will include engagement activities with key stakeholders including the local
community, service users, Joint Transportation Board and councillors. This will
ensure that those who are interested in the parking strategy development and the
impact it will have on their town have the opportunity to find out and where possible
influence the process.

2.3

A strategy should not only address the motion but also support economic growth and
recovery, identify parking pressure and prioritise opportunities, flex between the

Page 17

Agenda Item 5
differing seasonal, day and night economies as well as align with climate change
commitment, Thanet Local Plan and Government legislation and policy changes.

3.0

Options

3.1

Agree to undertake a well evidenced strategic review of parking across the district
and then develop a district wide parking strategy.

3.2

Reject the motion and proposal for a well evidenced strategic review of parking
across the district and then develop a district wide parking strategy.

3.3

Agree to undertake a review based on the motion proposed.

Contact Officer: Penny Button (Director of Neighbourhoods)
Reporting to: Gavin Waite (Corporate Director - Communities)

Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 18

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING TOWN CENTRE PARKING
Council

12 January 2022

Report Author

Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager

Portfolio Holder

Councillor D Saunders, Cabinet Member for Finance

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All Wards

Executive Summary:
This Council will consider a notice of motion requesting that the Council commits to
conducting a district wide impact assessment that will assess the impact of town centre
residential developments on the availability of on and off street parking, and to develop
solutions that support the community in response to the findings.

Recommendation(s):
Council is invited to consider whether to debate the motion.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
None arising directly from this report.
Legal
Council Procedure Rule 3.7 states that: “the Member whose name appears first on the
notice will move the motion during his or her speech and call for a seconder. If seconded, a
Member from the controlling political group will be entitled to a reply, after which the motion
shall stand referred without further discussion to the Cabinet or appropriate committee for
determination or report unless the Council decides to debate the motion in accordance with
Rule 16” (rules of debate)
Corporate
Council Procedure Rule 3 provides the opportunity for Councillors to give advance notice of
motions to be put to Council.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Page 19

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
There are no specific equalities issues arising from this report.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The following motion has been received from Councillor Crittenden in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule No. 3:
“The growth of town centre residential developments throughout the District are
putting pressure on residential and visitor parking, to the detriment of both residents
and visitors.
Whilst it is within the Local Plan, in accordance with National Policy and consistent
with climate change targets, that parking facilities will not be required or expected for
residential development planning applications within town centres, this does not take
into account the needs of workers, especially keyworkers, or residents with
disabilities, who genuinely need access to their own transport. Few of those most
affected are in a position to pay for resident parking schemes or annual season
tickets for car parks. The result has been increased pressure on what limited parking
is available in the streets surrounding our town centres and beyond.
Thanet District Council recognises these challenges and commits to undertake a
District wide impact assessment of increased pressures on both on and off street
parking in our town centres arising from the expansion of town centre residential
development, taking into account relevant factors such as access to electric vehicle
charging, public transport links, cycle storage and pedestrian safety (especially at
night), in consultation with KCC, ward councillors, other stakeholders (eg public
transport providers) and the public, in order to develop solutions that support the
community, recognising the need for some groups to have access to safe personal
transport due to work conditions or disadvantage."

2.0

Options

2.1

To debate the motion,

2.2

Not to debate the motion, in which case the motion will fall.

Page 20

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
2.3

If debated, following the conclusion of the debate, the only action that may be taken
is to refer the motion to Cabinet as the motion refers to an issue which would be
considered as part of the Local Plan Review. Part 3.8 (v) of the Council Procedure
Rules states:
"The Chair shall rule out of order any motion on notice that relates to the adoption of,
or amendment to, a policy falling within the Council’s adopted Policy Framework if
that policy or amendment (as the case may be) has not first been proposed by the
Cabinet....... "
Therefore, it is appropriate for Council to refer the issue to Cabinet for further
consideration in its work for the Local Plan Review.

3.0

Decision Making Process

3.1

It is for Council to decide whether or not to debate the motion, and if it does so, to
then refer it to Cabinet.

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Estelle Culligan, Head of Law and Democracy
Annex List
There are no annexes with this report.
Background Papers
There are no background papers with this report.
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Margate Levelling Up Fund: Third Party Grant
Cabinet

28 April, 2022

Report Author

Louise Askew, Director of Regeneration

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Reece Pugh, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Economic Development

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Yes

Reasons for Key

An executive decision which involves the incurring of
expenditure exceeding £250,000

Ward:

Central Margate

Executive Summary:
This paper requests the approval of Cabinet to agree to provide a grant for the Margate
Levelling Up Fund project to EKC Group, to deliver the project already identified and
approved. As the Accountable Body, Thanet District Council will receive the funding to be
allocated against pre-agreed projects. In certain cases, these projects are proposed to be
delivered by a third party, through a formally agreed grant. Where these grants exceed
£250,000 Cabinet are required to approve these allocations.

Recommendation(s):
1. Approve the use of Grants which exceed £250,000 to third parties to deliver the
agreed Department of Levelling Up Housing and Communities funded project:
- £6,306,078 capital grant to the EKC Group, to deliver the Margate Digital project,
identified in the Margate Levelling Up Funding bid.
2. Each grant agreement is signed under Deed, by the Director of Law and Democracy,
and the Director of Finance and S151 Officer, and is witnessed by a Member of the
Council.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The Council is the Accountable Body for the Levelling Up Fund. The Council has the below
in place to deal with matters relating to the funding, management, and assurance protocols
are in place to:
● Ensure decisions are made in accordance with good governance principles

Page 23

Agenda Item 6
●
●
●
●
●

Ensure transparency requirements are met
Provide a Local Assurance Process
Receive and account for the funding allocation
Monitor and evaluate the delivery of individual projects
Submit regular reports to DLUHC

For the Levelling Up Funded Projects an internal Management Board has been established
and a Programme Scrutiny Panel to ensure the projects are being delivered in line with good
project management principles - keeping to time and budget, and reviewing the risks.
The Section 151 Officer is required to scrutinise and approve regular monitoring returns
(quarterly) to DLUHC. These returns will cover actual and forecast spend, alongside output
metrics. These returns will cover actual and forecast spend, alongside output metrics. The
grant documents will require the Monitoring and Evaluation reports to be completed by the
third party.
Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.
Annex 1 is a standard grant document which was developed by an external legal team, to
give the Council the confidence that the grant will be delivered in accordance with the
requirements placed on the Council as the Accountable Body. This document has been
shared with Regeneration, Finance and Legal Officers to agree to the draft. Each of these
grant agreements will include specific requirements relating to the project and the entity
delivering the project. For grants greater than £1,000,000 this will be commissioned through
the external legal team.
Corporate
The Margate Levelling Up Fund Project delivers against the Council’s corporate priority for
Growth, including encouraging the rejuvenation of our towns, creating new opportunities to
gain skills and therefore employment.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6
CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Communities

1.

Introduction and Background

1.1.

The successful MargateDigital Levelling Up Fund project will be delivered directly by a
third party - EKC Group. With Thanet District Council being the accountable body for
the funding streams, these funds will be passed onto the third party via a grant, to
enable delivery.

1.2.

Officers have been actively working with EKC Group to develop this project and develop
the grant agreements referred to in the Legal section of this report (Annex 1), and
funding is now being allocated by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities. EKC Group is on a very tight programme of delivery, with their ambition to
be welcoming students into the Margate Digital Campus from September 2023.

1.3.

The paper is considered an Urgent item due to missing the deadline to add this key
approval process to the Forward Plan, and the Council does not want to miss out on the
momentum by waiting until the June Cabinet meeting in order to award grants, when
funding has already been provided.

2.
2.1.

Grant Agreements
To ensure accountability and to safeguard our responsibilities as the Accountable Body,
Thanet District Council has commissioned Sharpe Pritchard LLP to develop two forms of
grant agreements. These grants agreements aim to ensure we have safeguards in place
including:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

The achievement of the outcomes;
The delivery of the projects in accordance with our requirements;
The appropriate use of the funds;
Ensuring that reporting, monitoring arrangements are in place;
Auditing systems are in place;
Adherence to statutory duties including procurement, EqIA, Data Protection,
Fraud and Corruption.

2.2.

The first, is a generic grant agreement template which can be adapted for use for grants
of below £1,000,000. The second Grant Agreements are bespoke agreements,
developed for all projects over £1,000,000.

2.3.

Each grant agreement is signed under Deed, and as such would require the signature of
the Director of Law and Democracy, and the Director of Finance and S151 Officer, and
be witnessed by a Member of the Council.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6
3.
3.1.

Corporate Governance of the Grants
It is essential that as the accountable body Thanet District Council has established
processes in place to ensure that this money is safeguarded. So in addition to the initial
Grant Agreement, internal monitoring processes will be established, overseen by our
internal projects managers, which will include:
a. Receiving and reviewing all financial spends and forecasts;
b. Reviewing all project milestones to ensure these are being delivered in
accordance with the project plan;
c. Ad hoc site visits;
d. Monthly progress meetings;
e. Audits to ensure appropriate reporting mechanisms are in place;
f. Financial audits to ensure propriety of funds.

3.2.

All these reporting activities will then be reported to our internal governance structures
including the:
a.
b.
c.
d.

Levelling Up Funds Programme Management Board;
Levelling Up Fund Programme Scrutiny Panel for Margate;
Corporate Management Team;
Cabinet.

Contact Officer: Louise Askew, Director of Regeneration
Reporting to: Madeline Homer, Chief Executive
Background Papers
Cabinet: 17 June, 2021 - approved submission of the Margate Digital Levelling Up Fund bid
Council: 12 January, 2022 - approval of addition of the Levelling Up Fund Projects For
Ramsgate And Margate to the Capital Programme
Annex 1: Final Draft Grant Agreement
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer
Legal:

Page 26

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1

DATED

202[2]

AND

AF
T

(1) THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL

AL

D
R

(2) [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

FI

N

GRANT AGREEMENT

Page 27

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
AGREEMENT DETAILS
DATED: [INSERT] [Drafting guidance (to be deleted once completed): Once both parties have signed the
next page, this section is to be dated and this then completes the contract.]

Thanet District Council (the “Funder”)

Funder’s address

Council Offices, P.O.Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, CT9
1XZ

Recipient

[NAME] OR [COMPANY NAME] Limited (Company
number [NUMBER]) (the “Recipient”)

Recipient’s address

The Recipient’s principal address/registered office at
[ADDRESS] OR Company registered office: [ADDRESS]

Grant

The sum of £[AMOUNT] to be paid to the Recipient in
accordance with this Agreement.

Grant Period

The period for which the Grant is awarded starting on the
Commencement Date and ending on [DATE BY WHICH
THE GRANT MUST BE SPENT].

D
R

AF
T

Funder:

Project

[INSERT DETAILS OF THE PROJECT TO BE FUNDED
BY THE GRANT]

N

Outcome

AL

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): It is important to be specific
and, where appropriate, include specific
project outcomes here. The terms and
conditions included refer back to this
definition of “Project” and it is this
referring back which limits how the Grant
can be spent. For example (from clause
2.2.) “The Recipient shall not make any
significant change to the Project without
the Funder's prior written agreement”.]

FI

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Include here a headline
intended outcome for the Project. E.g.
“Regeneration of [area]”, or “Construction
of [item]”, “New full time role of [role]
onboarded”, etc”.]

Grant Payment Timetable

Amount of Grant Payable

Date of (or trigger for)
Payment

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): If all the Grant sum will be
drawn down in one go, the date from
which the Recipient is entitled to the
Grant should be inserted and the other
rows deleted.

[INSERT
PROPORTION
OF
GRANT
PAYABLE
UPON DATE/TRIGGER]

[INSERT
DATE
MILESTONE]

The additional rows will only be needed if
the Grant is to be drawn down in

[…]

[…]

1

Page 28

OR

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
sections/upon
milestones.

achievement

of

[…]

[…]

Item of Expenditure

Budget (in UK Sterling)

[INSERT
ITEM
OF
PROJECT WHICH CAN BE
FUNDED
BY
CORRESPONDING
BUDGET]

[ALLOCATED BUDGET]

[…]

[…]

Grant Budget
(If applicable)

Funder Representative

D
R

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Where the Council wants to
determine how the Grant is allocated
towards costs of the Project in more
detail, then it can insert details here
which breakdown aspects of the Project
and how much of the overall Grant can
be allocated towards each of them (e.g.
the Council could limit costs which could
be spent towards administration or
individual project-specific items).]

AF
T

Where a proportion of the Grant is
payable upon a certain date then the
date should be inserted alongside the
corresponding Grant amount that can be
drawn at that time. Where a proportion of
the Grant is payable upon the
achievement of a milestone, details of
such milestone should be inserted.]

Name: [INSERT]

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): In this box the Council
should insert the details of the
appropriate representative who will
oversee the implementation and delivery
of the grant agreement. They are also the
first escalation should there be an
dispute arising.]

Title: [INSERT]

Recipient Representative

Name: [INSERT]

Email: [INSERT]

AL

Telephone: [INSERT]

FI

N

Title: [INSERT]

Commencement Date

Email: [INSERT]
Telephone: [INSERT]
The date when both parties have signed this Agreement.

Additional Funding/Matched
Funding
[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Include any details here in
relation to any matched funding or
additional funding arrangements for the
Project. Delete this box if not relevant.

The Recipient shall inform the Funder as soon as
practicable of any change to the terms of any Additional
Funding or Matched Funding in relation to the Project.
The Funder will not in any circumstance be required to pay
the Grant to the Recipient and the Recipient has no right to
the Grant unless and until the Funder has confirmed in
writing that it has received evidence in writing from the
Recipient that any required Additional Funding/Matched
Funding has been received by the Funder and that
2

Page 29

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
additional funding (and any terms thereof) is to the
satisfaction of the Funder at its sole discretion.
In the Conditions:

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): This section is to be used for
any specific amendments that are
required to the standard terms and
conditions attached to this front page.
Where a clause in the standard terms
does not reflect the Project closely
enough, it can be deleted or amended
pursuant to this box. A couple of items to
consider are:

Clause 6.2 (Reporting). If
additional
reporting
requirements are required (or at
different intervals in addition to
quarterly, add in details here).

-

Clause
(Commencement):
Amend
the
clawback
mechanism timeline from 6
months if this is not appropriate
for the Project.

-

Clause (Insurance): Amend the
required insurance levels as
appropriate to the project.

[(b) Clause [NUMBER] added: This clause is inserted into
the Agreement Conditions: [NEW CLAUSE]].
[(c) Clause [NUMBER] amended: This clause is amended
to read as follows: [AMENDED CLAUSE IN FULL].]]

In addition to the Conditions, the following provisions will
apply to this Agreement:

D
R

-

[(a) Clause [NUMBER] deleted: The entire text of clause
[NUMBER] is deleted and replaced with the words "Not
used"].

AF
T

Special Terms

AL

Consider any back-to-back requirements.
If there are obligations on the Council
(e.g. where the Council is party to its own
grant agreement/terms with Government
in relation to the funding) these should be
reflected here.

N

Additionally, new clauses can be added
in here if there are project-specific or
grant-specific details which the Council
wishes to require the Recipient to follow.]

FI

1. This Agreement is made up of these Agreement Details and the Agreement Conditions.
2. If there is any conflict or ambiguity between the terms of the Agreement Details and the
Agreement Conditions, the Agreement Details shall have priority and prevail over the
Agreement Conditions.

This DEED has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it.

3

Page 30

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing
the common seal of THANET
DISTRICT COUNCIL in the
presence of:

……………………………
Authorised officer
…………………………….
Authorised officer

AF
T

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once completed): Please liaise with the Recipient to choose the most
appropriate way of signing this deed from the below four options (Options 1 -3 are for companies, Options 4 is for
Charities). The Recipient will likely be best placed to determine between the options the most appropriate
execution clause:]

Option 1: (Company) Signed by 2 directors:

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by and under the signatures of:

)

……………………………

……………………………
Name of Director

AL

Signature of Director

D
R

EXECUTED as a DEED

……………………………

Signature of Director

Name of Director

N

……………………………

Option 2: (Company) Signed by 1 director and 1 company secretary:

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by and under the signatures of:

)

……………………………

……………………………

Signature of Director

Name of Director

……………………………

……………………………

Signature of Company Secretary

Name of Company Secretary

FI

EXECUTED as a DEED

4

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Option 3: (Company) Signed by 1 director in the presence of an independent witness:

EXECUTED as a DEED

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by [NAME OF DIRECTOR],

)

a director, in the presence of:

)

……………………………
Signature of Director

……………………………

Signature of Witness

Name of Witness

……………………………

……………………………

……………………………

Occupation of Witness

AF
T

……………………………

……………………………

Option 4: (Charity)

Signed as a deed by
[NAME OF THE TRUSTEE]

)
)
)

AL

in the presence of:

D
R

Address of Witness

N

……………………………

……………………………
Signature of Trustee

……………………………
Name of Witness

……………………………

……………………………

……………………………

Occupation of Witness

FI

Signature of Witness

……………………………
Address of Witness

5

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS

7

2.

PURPOSE OF GRANT

8

3.

PAYMENT OF GRANT

9

4.

USE OF GRANT

9

5.

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

10

6.

MONITORING AND REPORTING

10

7.

PUBLICITY

11

8.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

11

9.

CONFIDENTIALITY

AF
T

1.

11

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

11.

DATA PROTECTION

12.

WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT

12

13.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

13

14.

HUMAN RIGHTS

15.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

16.

WARRANTIES

17.

INSURANCE

18.

DURATION

19.

TERMINATION

20.

ASSIGNMENT

15

21.

WAIVER

15

22.

NOTICES

15

23.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

15

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

15

JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

16

12

13

14
14
15

AL

15

FI

25.

12

13

N

24.

D
R

10.

26.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

16

27.

GOVERNING LAW

16

28.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

16

SCHEDULE 1 – INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE

17

6

Page 33

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
GRANT AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT CONDITIONS
RECITALS
(A)

The Funder has agreed to pay the Grant to the Recipient to assist it in carrying out the
Project.

(B)

This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions on which the Grant is made by the
Funder to the Recipient.

(C)

These terms and conditions are intended to ensure that the Grant is used for the purpose for
which it is awarded.

AGREED TERMS
DEFINITIONS

AF
T

1.

In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:

means this agreement between the Funder and the
Recipient in accordance with the Agreement Details
and these Agreement Conditions.

Agreement
Conditions

these terms and conditions set out in clause 1 to 28.

D
R

Agreement

means the front cover table attached to these
Agreement Conditions which set out the specific details
of this Agreement.

Bribery Act

the Bribery Act 2010 and any subordinate legislation
made under that Act from time to time together with any
guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant
government department concerning the legislation.

AL

Agreement Details

FI

N

Data
Protection
Legislation:

all applicable data protection and privacy legislation in
force from time to time in the UK including the UK
GDPR; the Data Protection Act 2018 (and regulations
made thereunder); and the Privacy and Electronic
Communications Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/2426) as
amended and the guidance and codes of practice
issued by the Information Commissioner or other
relevant regulatory authority and applicable to a party.

Governing Body

the governing body of the Recipient including its
directors or trustees.

Ineligible
Expenditure

each of the ineligible items contained in Schedule 1.

Intellectual
Property Rights

all patents, copyrights and design rights (whether
registered or not) and all applications for any of the
foregoing and all rights of confidence and Know-How
however arising for their full term and any renewals and
extensions.

7

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Know-How

information, data, know-how or experience whether
patentable or not and including but not limited to any
technical and commercial information relating to
research, design, development, manufacture, use or
sale.

Personal Data

shall have the same meaning as set out in the Data
Protection Legislation.

Prohibited Act

(1) offering, giving or agreeing to give any gift or
consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward
for:
doing or not doing (or for having done or not
having done) any act in relation to the obtaining
or performance of this Agreement or any other
contract with the Funder; or

(b)

showing or not showing favour or disfavour to
any person in relation to this Agreement or any
other contract with the Funder;

AF
T

(a)

D
R

(2) entering into this Agreement or any other contract
with the Funder where a commission has been paid or
has been agreed to be paid by the Recipient or on its
behalf, or to its knowledge, unless before the relevant
contract is entered into particulars of any such
commission and of the terms and conditions of any
such contract for the payment thereof have been
disclosed in writing to the Funder;

FI

N

AL

(a)

UK GDPR

2.

committing any offence:
(i)

under the Bribery Act;

(ii)

under legislation creating offences in
respect of fraudulent acts; or

(b)

at common law in respect of fraudulent acts in
relation to this Agreement or any other contract
with the Funder; or

(c)

defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring
to defraud the Funder.

has the meaning given to it in section 3(10) (as
supplemented by section 205(4)) of the Data Protection
Act 2018.

PURPOSE OF GRANT
2.1

The Recipient shall use the Grant only for the delivery of the Project and in
accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. The Grant
shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written agreement of the
Funder.

8

Page 35

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1

2.3

Where the Recipient intends to apply to a third party for other funding for the
Project (including any additional or matched funding), it will notify the Funder in
advance of its intention to do so and, where such funding is obtained, it will provide
the Funder with details of the amount and purpose of that funding. The Recipient
agrees and accepts that it shall not apply for duplicate funding in respect of any
part of the Project or any related administration costs that the Funder is funding in
full under this Agreement.

PAYMENT OF GRANT
Subject to clause 12, the Funder shall pay the Grant to the Recipient in
accordance with the Grant Payment Timetable, subject to the necessary funds
being available when payment falls due. The Recipient agrees and accepts that
payments of the Grant can only be made to the extent that the Funder has
available funds.

3.2

No Grant shall be paid unless and until the Funder is satisfied that such payment
will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of the Project.

3.3

The amount of the Grant shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by
the Recipient in its delivery of the Project.

3.4

The Recipient shall promptly repay to the Funder any money incorrectly paid to it
either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without
limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or
where Grant monies have been paid in error before all conditions attaching to the
Grant have been complied with by the Recipient.

AF
T

3.1

USE OF GRANT
4.1

The Grant shall be used by the Recipient for the delivery of the Project in
accordance with any agreed budget. Where the parties have agreed a Grant
Budget and included details of this in the Agreement Details, the amount of the
Grant that the Recipient may spend on any item of expenditure listed in column 1
of the Grant Budget shall not exceed the corresponding sum of money listed in
column 2 without the prior written agreement of the Funder.
Where the Recipient has obtained funding from a third party in relation to its
delivery of the Project (including without limitation funding for associated
administration and staffing costs), the amount of such funding shall be included in
the Grant Budget together with a clear description of what that funding shall be
used for.

N

4.2

4.3

D
R

4.

The Recipient shall not make any significant change to the Project without the
Funder's prior written agreement.

AL

3.

2.2

The Recipient shall not use the Grant to:

FI

4.3.1

make any payment to members of its Governing Body;

4.3.2

purchase buildings or land;

4.3.3

make any payment in any way in relation to any of the Ineligible
Expenditure; or

4.3.4

pay for any expenditure commitments of the Recipient entered into
before the Commencement Date,

unless this has been approved in writing by the Funder.
4.4

The Recipient shall not spend any part of the Grant on the delivery of the Project
after the Grant Period.

4.5

The Recipient shall not enter into any contracts or permit any payments to third
parties funded in whole or part by the Grant unless those contracts or payments
are made in accordance with the prevailing procurement regime in effect in the UK
from time to time as well as any minimum requirements set by the Funder from
time to time.
9

Page 36

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1

4.7

Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy liabilities
for staff employed by the Recipient to deliver the Project must be managed and
paid for by the Recipient using the Grant or other resources of the Recipient.
There will be no additional funding available from the Funder for this purpose.

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS
The Grant shall be shown in the Recipient's accounts as a restricted fund and shall
not be included under general funds.

5.2

The Recipient shall keep separate, accurate and up-to-date accounts and records
of the receipt and expenditure of the Grant monies received by it.

5.3

The Recipient shall keep all invoices, receipts, and accounts and any other
relevant documents relating to the expenditure of the Grant, Additional Funding or
Matched Funding for a period of at least seven years following receipt of any
monies to which they relate. The Funder shall have the right to review, at the
Funder's reasonable request, the Recipient's accounts and records that relate to
the expenditure of the Grant and shall have the right to take copies of such
accounts and records.

5.4

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a copy of its annual accounts within
six months (or such lesser period as the Funder may reasonably require) of the
end of the relevant financial year in respect of each year in which the Grant is paid.

5.5

The Recipient shall comply and facilitate the Funder's compliance with all statutory
requirements as regards to accounts, audit or examination of accounts, annual
reports and annual returns applicable to itself and the Funder.

AF
T

5.1

D
R

6.

Should any part of the Grant remain unspent at the end of the Grant Period, the
Recipient shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to the Funder or, if
agreed in writing by the Funder, shall be entitled to retain the unspent monies to
use for purposes as agreed between the parties.

MONITORING AND REPORTING
6.1

6.2

The Recipient shall on request provide the Funder or its auditors with such further
information, explanations and documents as the Funder may reasonably require in
order for it to establish that the Grant has been used properly in accordance with
this Agreement.
The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder or its auditors
such reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records,
for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fulfilment
of the conditions of this Agreement and shall, if so required, provide appropriate
oral or written explanations from them.

FI

N

6.3

The Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Project
throughout the Grant Period to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Project
are being met and that this Agreement is being adhered to.

AL

5.

4.6

6.4

The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder to visit the
Recipient once every quarter to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in its
reasonable opinion, the Funder considers that additional visits are necessary to
monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make such visits
on its behalf.

6.5

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a final report on completion of the
Grant Period which shall confirm whether and to what extent the Project has been
successfully and properly completed in accordance with the Outcome and include
details on how funding received was allocated across the Project.
Quarterly Financial and Operational Report

6.6

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a financial report and an operational
report on its use of the Grant or any Matched Funding and delivery of the Project
every quarter and in such formats as the Funder may reasonably require. The
10

Page 37

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Recipient will provide a template format for such report which details reporting
requirements for the Funders approval. The Recipient shall provide the Funder
with each report within three months of the last day of the quarter to which it
relates or at any such other intervals as required by the Funder.

6.8

Along with its first quarterly financial report, the Recipient shall provide the Funder
with a risk register and insurance review in the format provided by the Funder. The
Recipient shall, amongst others, address the health and safety of its staff in the
risk register.

7.1

The Recipient shall not publish any material referring to the Funder or the Grant
without the prior written agreement of the Funder.

7.2

The Recipient agrees to participate in and cooperate with promotional activities
(including any use of required logos) relating to the Project that may be instigated,
organised or otherwise required by the Funder.

7.3

The Funder may acknowledge the Recipient's involvement in the Project as
appropriate without prior notice or the Recipient’s consent.

7.4

The Recipient shall comply with all reasonable requests from the Funder to
facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs and case studies that will
assist the Funder in its promotional and fundraising activities relating to the
Project.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS
8.1

The Funder and the Recipient agree that all rights, title and interest in or to any
information, data, reports, documents, procedures, forecasts, technology,
Know-How and any other Intellectual Property Rights whatsoever owned by either
the Funder or the Recipient before the Commencement Date or developed by
either party during the Grant Period, shall remain the property of that party.
Where the Funder has provided the Recipient with any of its Intellectual Property
Rights for use in connection with the Project (including without limitation its name
and logo), the Recipient shall, on termination of this Agreement, cease to use such
Intellectual Property Rights immediately and shall either return or destroy such
Intellectual Property Rights as requested by the Funder.

N

8.2

9.

AF
T

PUBLICITY

D
R

8.

The Recipient shall keep informed of any changes to funding terms of any
third-party funding (for example any Additional Funding or Matched Funding) and
will, as part of the financial report and operational report, disclose any changes to
the Funder. Where the Funder becomes aware of any such changes in funding
terms it shall inform the Recipient where it is practicable and permissible to do so.

AL

7.

6.7

CONFIDENTIALITY
Subject to clause 10 (Freedom of Information), each party shall during the term of
this Agreement and thereafter keep secret and confidential all Intellectual Property
Rights or Know-How or other business, technical or commercial information
disclosed to it as a result of this Agreement and shall not disclose the same to any
person save to the extent necessary to perform its obligations in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement or save as expressly authorised in writing by the other
party.

FI

9.1

9.2

The obligation of confidentiality contained in this clause shall not apply or shall
cease to apply to any Intellectual Property Rights, Know-How or other business,
technical or commercial information which:
9.2.1

at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party is already in the public
domain or which subsequently enters the public domain other than by
breach of the terms of this Agreement by the receiving party;

9.2.2

is already known to the receiving party as evidenced by written records
at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party and was not otherwise
11

Page 38

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
acquired by the receiving party from the disclosing party under any
obligations of confidence; or
9.2.3

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
10.1

The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder is subject to the requirements of the
Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the Environmental Information
Regulations 2004 (EIRs).

10.2

The Recipient shall:

transfer to the Funder all requests for information relating to this
Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event within
two (2) working days of receipt;

10.2.3

provide the Funder with a copy of all information belonging to the Funder
requested in the request for information which is in its possession or
control in the form that the Funder requires within five (5) working days
(or such other period as the Funder may reasonably specify) of the
Funder's request for such information; and

10.2.4

not respond directly to a request for information unless authorised in
writing to do so by the Funder.

AF
T

10.2.2

The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder may be required under the FOIA and
EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining consent from the
Recipient. The Funder shall take reasonable steps to notify the Recipient of a
request for information (in accordance with the Secretary of State's section 45
Code of Practice on the Discharge of the Functions of Public Authorities under
Part 1 of the FOIA) to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practicable
for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the
Funder shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any
information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the
EIRs.

DATA PROTECTION

N

11.

provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably
requested by the Funder to enable the Funder to comply with its
obligations under the FOIA and EIRs;

AL

10.3

10.2.1

D
R

10.

is at any time after the date of this Agreement acquired by the receiving
party from a third party having the right to disclose the same to the
receiving party without breach of the obligations owed by that party to the
disclosing party.

Both Parties will comply with all applicable requirements of and all their obligations under
the Data Protection Legislation which arise in connection with the Agreement.
WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT

FI

12.

12.1

The Funder's intention is that the Grant will be paid to the Recipient in full.
However, without prejudice to the Funder's other rights and remedies, the Funder
may at its discretion withhold or suspend payment of the Grant and/or require
repayment of all or part of the Grant if:
12.1.1

the Recipient uses the Grant or any Additional Funding or Matched
Funding for purposes other than those for which it has been awarded;

12.1.2

the delivery of the Project does not start within 6 months of the
Commencement Date and the Recipient has failed to provide the Funder
with a reasonable explanation for the delay;

12.1.3

the Funder considers that the Recipient has not made satisfactory
progress with the delivery of the Project or the Outcomes;

12.1.4

the Recipient is, in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, delivering the
Project in a negligent manner;
12

Page 39

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
12.1.5

the Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Project;

12.1.6

the Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable
opinion of the Funder, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the
reputation of the Project or the Funder into disrepute;

12.1.7

the Recipient provides the Funder with any materially misleading or
inaccurate information;

12.1.8

the Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act;

12.1.9

any member of the governing body, employee or volunteer of the
Recipient has (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time and directly
or indirectly to the detriment of the Project or (b) taken any actions which,
in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, bring or are likely to bring the
Funder's name or reputation into disrepute;

12.1.11

AF
T

12.1.10 the Recipient ceases to operate for any reason, or it passes a resolution
(or any court of competent jurisdiction makes an order) that it be wound
up or dissolved (other than for the purpose of a bona fide and solvent
reconstruction or amalgamation);
the Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or it is placed
into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been
presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or
composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay its debts
as they fall due;

D
R

12.1.12 the Recipient fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions set out
in this Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 days of
receiving written notice detailing the failure; or
12.1.13 where applicable, the Recipient fails to provide the Funder with evidence
that it has obtained any applicable Additional Funding or Matched
Funding or the Funder is otherwise not satisfied of the terms of such
Additional Funding or Matched Funding.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

FI

13.

Should the Recipient be subject to financial or other difficulties which are capable
of having a material impact on its effective delivery of the Project or compliance
with this Agreement it will notify the Funder as soon as possible so that, if possible,
and without creating any legal obligation, the Funder will have an opportunity to
provide assistance in resolving the problem or to take action to protect the Funder
and the Grant monies.

N

12.3

The Funder may retain or set off any sums owed to it by the Recipient which have
fallen due and payable against any sums due to the Recipient under this
Agreement or any other agreement pursuant to which the Recipient provides
goods or services to the Funder.

AL

12.2

14.

13.1

The Recipient shall not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning and scope of
any law, enactment, order, or regulation relating to discrimination (whether in race,
gender, religion, disability, sexual orientation, age or otherwise) in employment or
otherwise.

13.2

The Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of clause
13.1 by all servants, employees or agents of the Recipient and all suppliers and
subcontractors engaged on the Project.

HUMAN RIGHTS
14.1

The Recipient shall (and shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that its
staff shall) at all times comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 in
the performance of this Agreement as if the Recipient were a public body (as
defined in the Human Rights Act 1998).

13

Page 40

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
14.2

15.1

The Funder accepts no liability for any consequences, whether direct or indirect,
that may come about from the Recipient running the Project, the use of the Grant
or from withdrawal of the Grant. The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless
the Funder, its employees, agents, officers or subcontractors with respect to all
claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses, losses, damages and all other
liabilities arising from or incurred by reason of the actions and/or omissions of the
Recipient in relation to the Project, the non-fulfilment of obligations of the Recipient
under this Agreement or its obligations to third parties.

15.2

Subject to clause 15.1, the Funder's liability under this Agreement is limited to the
payment of the Grant.

AF
T

16.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

WARRANTIES

The Recipient warrants, undertakes and agrees that:
16.1.1

it has all necessary resources, approvals, powers and expertise to
deliver the Project (assuming due receipt of the Grant);

16.1.2

it has not committed, nor shall it commit, any Prohibited Act;

16.1.3

it shall at all times comply with all relevant legislation and all applicable
codes of practice and other similar codes or recommendations, and shall
notify the Funder immediately of any significant departure from such
legislation, codes or recommendations;

16.1.4

it shall comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work
etc. Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of
practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to employees and
other persons working on the Project;

16.1.5

it has and shall keep in place adequate procedures for dealing with any
conflicts of interest;

AL

16.1

D
R

15.

The Recipient shall undertake, or refrain from undertaking, such acts as the
Funder requests so as to enable the Funder to comply with its obligations under
the Human Rights Act 1998.

it has and shall keep in place systems to deal with the prevention of
fraud and/or administrative malfunction;

16.1.7

all financial and other information concerning the Recipient which has
been disclosed to the Funder is to the best of its knowledge and belief,
true and accurate;

N

16.1.6

FI

16.1.8

16.1.9

it is not subject to any contractual or other restriction imposed by its own
or any other organisation's rules or regulations or otherwise which may
prevent or materially impede it from meeting its obligations in connection
with the Grant;
it is not aware of anything in its own affairs, which it has not disclosed to
the Funder or any of the Funder's advisers, which might reasonably have
influenced the decision of the Funder to make the Grant on the terms
contained in this Agreement; and

16.1.10 since the date of its last accounts there has been no material change in
its financial position or prospects.
17.

INSURANCE
17.1

The Recipient shall effect and maintain with a reputable insurance company a
policy or policies in respect of all risks which may be incurred by the Recipient,
arising out of the Recipient's performance of the Agreement, including death or
personal injury, loss of or damage to property or any other loss (the Required
Insurances).

17.2

The Required Insurances referred to above include (but are not limited to):
14

Page 41

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
17.2.1

public liability insurance with a limit of indemnity of not less than five
million pounds (£5,000,000) in relation to any one claim or series of
claims arising from the Project; and

17.2.2

employer's liability insurance with a limit of indemnity of not less than five
million pounds (£5,000,000) in relation to any one claim or series of
claims arising from the Project.

The Recipient shall (on request) supply to the Funder a copy of such insurance
policies and evidence that the relevant premiums have been paid.

19.

DURATION
18.1

Except where otherwise specified, the terms of this Agreement shall apply from the
date of this Agreement until the anniversary of expiry of the Grant Period or for so
long as any Grant monies remain unspent by the Recipient, whichever is longer.

18.2

Any obligations under this Agreement that remain unfulfilled following the expiry or
termination of the Agreement shall survive such expiry or termination and continue
in full force and effect until they have been fulfilled.

AF
T

18.

TERMINATION

The Funder may terminate this Agreement and any Grant payments on giving the Recipient
three months' written notice should it be required to do so by financial restraints or for any
other reason.
20.

ASSIGNMENT

21.

D
R

The Recipient may not, without the prior written consent of the Funder, assign, transfer,
sub-contract, or in any other way make over to any third party the benefit and/or the burden
of this Agreement or, except as contemplated as part of the Project, transfer or pay to any
other person any part of the Grant.
WAIVER

No failure or delay by either party to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement
shall be construed as a waiver of any other right or remedy.
NOTICES

AL

22.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

FI

23.

N

All notices and other communications in relation to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered, e-mailed, or mailed (first
class postage prepaid) to the address of the relevant party, as referred to above or
otherwise notified in writing. If personally delivered or if e-mailed all such communications
shall be deemed to have been given when received (except that if received on a
non-working day or after 5.00 pm on any working day they shall be deemed received on the
next working day) and if mailed all such communications shall be deemed to have been
given and received on the second working day following such mailing.
23.1

In the event of any complaint or dispute (which does not relate to the Funder's right
to withhold funds or terminate) arising between the parties to this Agreement in
relation to this Agreement the matter should first be referred for resolution to the
Funder Representative or any other individual nominated by the Funder from time
to time.

23.2

Should the complaint or dispute remain unresolved within 14 days of the matter
first being referred to the Funder Representative or other nominated individual, as
the case may be, either party may refer the matter to the Director of Law and
Democracy and the Section 151 Officer of the Funder and the Chair of the
Recipient with an instruction to attempt to resolve the dispute by agreement within
28 days, or such other period as may be mutually agreed by the Funder and the
Recipient.

23.3

In the absence of agreement under clause 23.2, the parties may seek to resolve
the matter through mediation under the CEDR Model Mediation Procedure (or
15

Page 42

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
such other appropriate dispute resolution model as is agreed by both parties).
Unless otherwise agreed, the parties shall bear the costs and expenses of the
mediation equally.
24.

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY
This Agreement shall not create any partnership or joint venture between the Funder and
the Recipient, nor any relationship of principal and agent, nor authorise any party to make or
enter into any commitments for or on behalf of the other party.

25.

JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY
Where the Recipient is not a company nor an incorporated entity with a distinct legal
personality of its own, the individuals who enter into and sign this Agreement on behalf of
the Recipient shall be jointly and severally liable for the Recipient's obligations and liabilities
arising under this Agreement.
CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

AF
T

26.

This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any contractual benefit on any
person pursuant to the terms of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
27.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England
and the parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.
28.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

FI

N

AL

D
R

This Agreement (together with all documents attached to or referred to within it) constitutes
the entire agreement and understanding between the parties in relation to the Grant and
supersedes any previous agreement or understanding between them in relation to such
subject matter.

16

Page 43

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1
Schedule 1 – Ineligible Expenditure
Any and each of the following:

D
R

AF
T

Costs incurred prior to commencement date of the offer letter
Funding core costs of an organisation (i.e. existing staff)
Payments for activity of a political nature
Payments for activity of a religious nature
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of assets
Provisions
Contingent liabilities
Contingencies
Profit made by the applicant
Dividends
Investments
Interest charges
Service charges arising on finance leases, hire purchase and credit arrangements
Costs involved in winding up a company
Payments for unfair dismissal
Payments into private pension schemes
Payments for unfunded pensions
Compensation for loss of office
Bad debts
Payments for gifts and donations
Entertainments
Reclaimable VAT
Statutory fines and penalties
Criminal fines and damages
Legal expenses in respect of litigation
Alcohol
Travel that is not the most economical form of transport to a meeting/destination
Overnight accommodation not sought at the most economical rates

FI

N

AL

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

17

Page 44

Agenda Item 7
Margate Town Deal: Project Grant to Third Parties
Cabinet

28 April, 2022

Report Author

Louise Askew, Director of Regeneration

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Reece Pugh, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Economic Development

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Yes

Reasons for Key

An executive decision which involves the incurring of
expenditure exceeding £250,000

Ward:

All wards in Margate

Executive Summary:
This paper requests the approval of Cabinet to agree to provide the grants identified in the
Margate Town Deal Investment Plan and subsequent business cases to third parties, to
deliver projects already identified and approved. As the Accountable Body, Thanet District
Council will receive the funding to be allocated against pre-agreed projects. In certain cases,
these projects are proposed to be delivered by a third party, through a formally agreed grant.
Where these grants exceed £250,000 Cabinet are required to approve these allocations.

Recommendation(s):
1. Approve the payment of Grants to third parties to deliver the agreed Department of
Levelling Up Housing and Communities funded projects. These grant payments are:
- £6,000,000 capital grant to the Margate Creative Land Trust to deliver the outcomes
identified in the Margate Town Investment Plan
- Up to £900,000 revenue funding for Participation and Engagement as part of the
Scaling Margate's Creative and Production Intervention, and delivery of the
Creative Land Trust.
- £500,000 capital grant to GRASS for the Oval Bandstand and Gardens project
2. Each grant agreement is signed as a Deed, by the Director of Law and Democracy
and Director of Finance and S151 Officer, and is witnessed by a Member of the
Council.

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The Council is the Accountable Body for the Margate Town Deal. The Council has the below
in place to deal with matters relating to the funding, management, and assurance protocols
are in place to:
● Ensure decisions are made in accordance with good governance principles
● Ensure transparency requirements are met
● Provide a Local Assurance Process
● Receive and account for the funding allocation
● Monitor and evaluate the delivery of individual projects
● Submit regular reports to DLUHC
The Section 151 Officer is required to scrutinise and approve regular monitoring returns (at
least six monthly) to DLUHC. These returns will cover actual and forecast spend, alongside
output metrics. The grant documents will require the Monitoring and Evaluation reports to be
completed by the third party.
Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.
Annex 1 is a standard grant document which was developed by an external legal team, to
give the Council the confidence that the grant will be delivered in accordance with the
requirements placed on the Council as the Accountable Body. This document has been
shared with Regeneration, Finance and Legal Officers to agree to the draft. Each of these
grant agreements will include specific requirements relating to the project and the entity
delivering the project. For grants greater than £1,000,000 this will be commissioned through
the external legal team.
Corporate
The Margate Town Deal delivers against the Council’s corporate priority for Growth,
including encouraging the rejuvenation of our towns, creating new employment opportunities
and continuing to promote tourism.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.

Introduction and Background

1.1.

The Margate Town Deal projects were identified within the Margate Town Investment
Plan, with a Heads of Terms offer from central Government in May 2021. Since then the
Council has been working with stakeholders and project deliverers to put together a
series of Business Cases, which are compliant with HM Treasury guidance on how to
appraise policies, programmes and projects, as set out in their Green Book guidance.

1.2.

Under Scaling Margate’s Creative Production and Skills the Business Case for the
development of a Creative Land Trust has been approved by central government and
the first tranche of funding has been awarded to the Council. The Creative Land Trust
Board of Trustees is being recruited to, and an asset plan is being developed to support
the delivery of the Trust’s ambitions. The Charity Commision application has been
successful with the Trust now formally set-up as a Charity, and a bank account is being
opened. All these elements will enable the Trust to act quickly to purchase or take a
long lease on assets in Margate, to help safeguard the future of the creative industries.

1.3.

The project for the Oval Bandstand and Gardens is being delivered by GRASS following
a successful asset transfer by the Council. This project forms part of the wider Coastal
Wellbeing intervention, and is part of a mix of projects aiming to support communities in
Margate’s most deprived ward have better access to community facilities and
opportunities to improve their health and wellbeing.

1.4.

Officers have been actively working with the project teams to develop the Business
Case and the projects themselves. Funding is already with the Council, and the ambition
from all parties is to start delivery as soon as possible. The paper is considered an
Urgent item due to missing the deadline to add this key approval process to the Forward
Plan, and the Council does not want to miss out on the momentum by waiting until the
June Cabinet meeting in order to award grants, when funding has already been
provided.

2.
2.1.

Grant Agreements
To ensure accountability and to safeguard our responsibilities as the Accountable Body,
Thanet District Council has commissioned Sharpe Pritchard LLP to develop two forms of
grant agreements. These grants agreements aim to ensure we have safeguards in
place including:
●
●

The achievement of the outcomes
The delivery of the projects in accordance with our requirements

Page 47

Agenda Item 7
●
●
●
●

The appropriate use of the funds.
Ensuring that reporting, monitoring arrangements are in place.
Auditing systems are in place
Adherence to statutory duties including procurement, EqIA, Data Protection,
Fraud and Corruption.

2.2.

The first, is a generic grant agreement template which can be adapted for use for grants
of below £1,000,000. The second is a bespoke agreement, developed specifically for a
project, that is over £1,000,000.

2.3.

Each grant agreement is signed as a Deed, and as such would require the signature of
the Director of Law and Democracy, and the Director of Finance and S151 Officer, and
be witnessed by a Member of the Council.

3.
3.1.

Corporate Governance of the Grants
It is essential that as the accountable body, Thanet District Council has an established
process in place to ensure that this money is safeguarded. So in addition to the initial
Grant Agreement, internal monitoring processes will be established, overseen by our
internal project managers, which will include:
●
●
●
●
●
●

3.2.

Receiving and reviewing all financial spends and forecasts
Reviewing all project milestones to ensure these are being delivered in
accordance with the project plan.
Ad hoc site visits
Monthly progress meetings
Audits to ensure appropriate reporting mechanisms are in place.
Financial audits to ensure propriety of funds.

All these reporting activities will then be reported to our internal governance structures
including the:
a) Corporate Management Team
b) Cabinet

Contact Officer: Louise Askew, Director of Regeneration
Reporting to: Madeline Homer, Chief Executive
Background Papers
Extraordinary Cabinet 8th June 2021 Margate Town Deal Update And Next Steps
Margate Town deal webpages: https://www.thanet.gov.uk/campaigns/margate-town-deal/
Annex 1: Final Draft Grant Agreement
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 48

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1

DATED

202[2]

AND

AF
T

(1) THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL

AL

D
R

(2) [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

FI

N

GRANT AGREEMENT

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
AGREEMENT DETAILS
DATED: [INSERT] [Drafting guidance (to be deleted once completed): Once both parties have signed the
next page, this section is to be dated and this then completes the contract.]

Thanet District Council (the “Funder”)

Funder’s address

Council Offices, P.O.Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, CT9
1XZ

Recipient

[NAME] OR [COMPANY NAME] Limited (Company
number [NUMBER]) (the “Recipient”)

Recipient’s address

The Recipient’s principal address/registered office at
[ADDRESS] OR Company registered office: [ADDRESS]

Grant

The sum of £[AMOUNT] to be paid to the Recipient in
accordance with this Agreement.

Grant Period

The period for which the Grant is awarded starting on the
Commencement Date and ending on [DATE BY WHICH
THE GRANT MUST BE SPENT].

D
R

AF
T

Funder:

Project

[INSERT DETAILS OF THE PROJECT TO BE FUNDED
BY THE GRANT]

N

Outcome

AL

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): It is important to be specific
and, where appropriate, include specific
project outcomes here. The terms and
conditions included refer back to this
definition of “Project” and it is this
referring back which limits how the Grant
can be spent. For example (from clause
2.2.) “The Recipient shall not make any
significant change to the Project without
the Funder's prior written agreement”.]

FI

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Include here a headline
intended outcome for the Project. E.g.
“Regeneration of [area]”, or “Construction
of [item]”, “New full time role of [role]
onboarded”, etc”.]

Grant Payment Timetable

Amount of Grant Payable

Date of (or trigger for)
Payment

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): If all the Grant sum will be
drawn down in one go, the date from
which the Recipient is entitled to the
Grant should be inserted and the other
rows deleted.

[INSERT
PROPORTION
OF
GRANT
PAYABLE
UPON DATE/TRIGGER]

[INSERT
DATE
MILESTONE]

The additional rows will only be needed if
the Grant is to be drawn down in

[…]

[…]

1

Page 50

OR

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
sections/upon
milestones.

achievement

of

[…]

[…]

Item of Expenditure

Budget (in UK Sterling)

[INSERT
ITEM
OF
PROJECT WHICH CAN BE
FUNDED
BY
CORRESPONDING
BUDGET]

[ALLOCATED BUDGET]

[…]

[…]

Grant Budget
(If applicable)

Funder Representative

D
R

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Where the Council wants to
determine how the Grant is allocated
towards costs of the Project in more
detail, then it can insert details here
which breakdown aspects of the Project
and how much of the overall Grant can
be allocated towards each of them (e.g.
the Council could limit costs which could
be spent towards administration or
individual project-specific items).]

AF
T

Where a proportion of the Grant is
payable upon a certain date then the
date should be inserted alongside the
corresponding Grant amount that can be
drawn at that time. Where a proportion of
the Grant is payable upon the
achievement of a milestone, details of
such milestone should be inserted.]

Name: [INSERT]

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): In this box the Council
should insert the details of the
appropriate representative who will
oversee the implementation and delivery
of the grant agreement. They are also the
first escalation should there be an
dispute arising.]

Title: [INSERT]

Recipient Representative

Name: [INSERT]

Email: [INSERT]

AL

Telephone: [INSERT]

FI

N

Title: [INSERT]

Commencement Date

Email: [INSERT]
Telephone: [INSERT]
The date when both parties have signed this Agreement.

Additional Funding/Matched
Funding
[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): Include any details here in
relation to any matched funding or
additional funding arrangements for the
Project. Delete this box if not relevant.

The Recipient shall inform the Funder as soon as
practicable of any change to the terms of any Additional
Funding or Matched Funding in relation to the Project.
The Funder will not in any circumstance be required to pay
the Grant to the Recipient and the Recipient has no right to
the Grant unless and until the Funder has confirmed in
writing that it has received evidence in writing from the
Recipient that any required Additional Funding/Matched
Funding has been received by the Funder and that
2

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
additional funding (and any terms thereof) is to the
satisfaction of the Funder at its sole discretion.
In the Conditions:

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once
completed): This section is to be used for
any specific amendments that are
required to the standard terms and
conditions attached to this front page.
Where a clause in the standard terms
does not reflect the Project closely
enough, it can be deleted or amended
pursuant to this box. A couple of items to
consider are:

Clause 6.2 (Reporting). If
additional
reporting
requirements are required (or at
different intervals in addition to
quarterly, add in details here).

-

Clause
(Commencement):
Amend
the
clawback
mechanism timeline from 6
months if this is not appropriate
for the Project.

-

Clause (Insurance): Amend the
required insurance levels as
appropriate to the project.

[(b) Clause [NUMBER] added: This clause is inserted into
the Agreement Conditions: [NEW CLAUSE]].
[(c) Clause [NUMBER] amended: This clause is amended
to read as follows: [AMENDED CLAUSE IN FULL].]]

In addition to the Conditions, the following provisions will
apply to this Agreement:

D
R

-

[(a) Clause [NUMBER] deleted: The entire text of clause
[NUMBER] is deleted and replaced with the words "Not
used"].

AF
T

Special Terms

AL

Consider any back-to-back requirements.
If there are obligations on the Council
(e.g. where the Council is party to its own
grant agreement/terms with Government
in relation to the funding) these should be
reflected here.

N

Additionally, new clauses can be added
in here if there are project-specific or
grant-specific details which the Council
wishes to require the Recipient to follow.]

FI

1. This Agreement is made up of these Agreement Details and the Agreement Conditions.
2. If there is any conflict or ambiguity between the terms of the Agreement Details and the
Agreement Conditions, the Agreement Details shall have priority and prevail over the
Agreement Conditions.

This DEED has been entered into on the date stated at the beginning of it.

3

Page 52

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing
the common seal of THANET
DISTRICT COUNCIL in the
presence of:

……………………………
Authorised officer
…………………………….
Authorised officer

AF
T

[Drafting guidance (to be deleted once completed): Please liaise with the Recipient to choose the most
appropriate way of signing this deed from the below four options (Options 1 -3 are for companies, Options 4 is for
Charities). The Recipient will likely be best placed to determine between the options the most appropriate
execution clause:]

Option 1: (Company) Signed by 2 directors:

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by and under the signatures of:

)

……………………………

……………………………
Name of Director

AL

Signature of Director

D
R

EXECUTED as a DEED

……………………………

Signature of Director

Name of Director

N

……………………………

Option 2: (Company) Signed by 1 director and 1 company secretary:

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by and under the signatures of:

)

……………………………

……………………………

Signature of Director

Name of Director

……………………………

……………………………

Signature of Company Secretary

Name of Company Secretary

FI

EXECUTED as a DEED

4

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
Option 3: (Company) Signed by 1 director in the presence of an independent witness:

EXECUTED as a DEED

)

by [NAME OF RECIPIENT]

)

acting by [NAME OF DIRECTOR],

)

a director, in the presence of:

)

……………………………
Signature of Director

……………………………

Signature of Witness

Name of Witness

……………………………

……………………………

……………………………

Occupation of Witness

AF
T

……………………………

……………………………

Option 4: (Charity)

Signed as a deed by
[NAME OF THE TRUSTEE]

)
)
)

AL

in the presence of:

D
R

Address of Witness

N

……………………………

……………………………
Signature of Trustee

……………………………
Name of Witness

……………………………

……………………………

……………………………

Occupation of Witness

FI

Signature of Witness

……………………………
Address of Witness

5

Page 54

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS

7

2.

PURPOSE OF GRANT

8

3.

PAYMENT OF GRANT

9

4.

USE OF GRANT

9

5.

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

10

6.

MONITORING AND REPORTING

10

7.

PUBLICITY

11

8.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

11

9.

CONFIDENTIALITY

AF
T

1.

11

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

11.

DATA PROTECTION

12.

WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT

12

13.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

13

14.

HUMAN RIGHTS

15.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

16.

WARRANTIES

17.

INSURANCE

18.

DURATION

19.

TERMINATION

20.

ASSIGNMENT

15

21.

WAIVER

15

22.

NOTICES

15

23.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

15

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

15

JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY

16

12

13

14
14
15

AL

15

FI

25.

12

13

N

24.

D
R

10.

26.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

16

27.

GOVERNING LAW

16

28.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

16

SCHEDULE 1 – INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE

17

6

Page 55

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
GRANT AGREEMENT
AGREEMENT CONDITIONS
RECITALS
(A)

The Funder has agreed to pay the Grant to the Recipient to assist it in carrying out the
Project.

(B)

This Agreement sets out the terms and conditions on which the Grant is made by the
Funder to the Recipient.

(C)

These terms and conditions are intended to ensure that the Grant is used for the purpose for
which it is awarded.

AGREED TERMS
DEFINITIONS

AF
T

1.

In this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:

means this agreement between the Funder and the
Recipient in accordance with the Agreement Details
and these Agreement Conditions.

Agreement
Conditions

these terms and conditions set out in clause 1 to 28.

D
R

Agreement

means the front cover table attached to these
Agreement Conditions which set out the specific details
of this Agreement.

Bribery Act

the Bribery Act 2010 and any subordinate legislation
made under that Act from time to time together with any
guidance or codes of practice issued by the relevant
government department concerning the legislation.

AL

Agreement Details

FI

N

Data
Protection
Legislation:

all applicable data protection and privacy legislation in
force from time to time in the UK including the UK
GDPR; the Data Protection Act 2018 (and regulations
made thereunder); and the Privacy and Electronic
Communications Regulations 2003 (SI 2003/2426) as
amended and the guidance and codes of practice
issued by the Information Commissioner or other
relevant regulatory authority and applicable to a party.

Governing Body

the governing body of the Recipient including its
directors or trustees.

Ineligible
Expenditure

each of the ineligible items contained in Schedule 1.

Intellectual
Property Rights

all patents, copyrights and design rights (whether
registered or not) and all applications for any of the
foregoing and all rights of confidence and Know-How
however arising for their full term and any renewals and
extensions.

7

Page 56

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
Know-How

information, data, know-how or experience whether
patentable or not and including but not limited to any
technical and commercial information relating to
research, design, development, manufacture, use or
sale.

Personal Data

shall have the same meaning as set out in the Data
Protection Legislation.

Prohibited Act

(1) offering, giving or agreeing to give any gift or
consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward
for:
doing or not doing (or for having done or not
having done) any act in relation to the obtaining
or performance of this Agreement or any other
contract with the Funder; or

(b)

showing or not showing favour or disfavour to
any person in relation to this Agreement or any
other contract with the Funder;

AF
T

(a)

D
R

(2) entering into this Agreement or any other contract
with the Funder where a commission has been paid or
has been agreed to be paid by the Recipient or on its
behalf, or to its knowledge, unless before the relevant
contract is entered into particulars of any such
commission and of the terms and conditions of any
such contract for the payment thereof have been
disclosed in writing to the Funder;

FI

N

AL

(a)

UK GDPR

2.

committing any offence:
(i)

under the Bribery Act;

(ii)

under legislation creating offences in
respect of fraudulent acts; or

(b)

at common law in respect of fraudulent acts in
relation to this Agreement or any other contract
with the Funder; or

(c)

defrauding or attempting to defraud or conspiring
to defraud the Funder.

has the meaning given to it in section 3(10) (as
supplemented by section 205(4)) of the Data Protection
Act 2018.

PURPOSE OF GRANT
2.1

The Recipient shall use the Grant only for the delivery of the Project and in
accordance with the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement. The Grant
shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written agreement of the
Funder.

8

Page 57

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1

2.3

Where the Recipient intends to apply to a third party for other funding for the
Project (including any additional or matched funding), it will notify the Funder in
advance of its intention to do so and, where such funding is obtained, it will provide
the Funder with details of the amount and purpose of that funding. The Recipient
agrees and accepts that it shall not apply for duplicate funding in respect of any
part of the Project or any related administration costs that the Funder is funding in
full under this Agreement.

PAYMENT OF GRANT
Subject to clause 12, the Funder shall pay the Grant to the Recipient in
accordance with the Grant Payment Timetable, subject to the necessary funds
being available when payment falls due. The Recipient agrees and accepts that
payments of the Grant can only be made to the extent that the Funder has
available funds.

3.2

No Grant shall be paid unless and until the Funder is satisfied that such payment
will be used for proper expenditure in the delivery of the Project.

3.3

The amount of the Grant shall not be increased in the event of any overspend by
the Recipient in its delivery of the Project.

3.4

The Recipient shall promptly repay to the Funder any money incorrectly paid to it
either as a result of an administrative error or otherwise. This includes (without
limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has been paid or
where Grant monies have been paid in error before all conditions attaching to the
Grant have been complied with by the Recipient.

AF
T

3.1

USE OF GRANT
4.1

The Grant shall be used by the Recipient for the delivery of the Project in
accordance with any agreed budget. Where the parties have agreed a Grant
Budget and included details of this in the Agreement Details, the amount of the
Grant that the Recipient may spend on any item of expenditure listed in column 1
of the Grant Budget shall not exceed the corresponding sum of money listed in
column 2 without the prior written agreement of the Funder.
Where the Recipient has obtained funding from a third party in relation to its
delivery of the Project (including without limitation funding for associated
administration and staffing costs), the amount of such funding shall be included in
the Grant Budget together with a clear description of what that funding shall be
used for.

N

4.2

4.3

D
R

4.

The Recipient shall not make any significant change to the Project without the
Funder's prior written agreement.

AL

3.

2.2

The Recipient shall not use the Grant to:

FI

4.3.1

make any payment to members of its Governing Body;

4.3.2

purchase buildings or land;

4.3.3

make any payment in any way in relation to any of the Ineligible
Expenditure; or

4.3.4

pay for any expenditure commitments of the Recipient entered into
before the Commencement Date,

unless this has been approved in writing by the Funder.
4.4

The Recipient shall not spend any part of the Grant on the delivery of the Project
after the Grant Period.

4.5

The Recipient shall not enter into any contracts or permit any payments to third
parties funded in whole or part by the Grant unless those contracts or payments
are made in accordance with the prevailing procurement regime in effect in the UK
from time to time as well as any minimum requirements set by the Funder from
time to time.
9

Page 58

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1

4.7

Any liabilities arising at the end of the Project including any redundancy liabilities
for staff employed by the Recipient to deliver the Project must be managed and
paid for by the Recipient using the Grant or other resources of the Recipient.
There will be no additional funding available from the Funder for this purpose.

ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS
The Grant shall be shown in the Recipient's accounts as a restricted fund and shall
not be included under general funds.

5.2

The Recipient shall keep separate, accurate and up-to-date accounts and records
of the receipt and expenditure of the Grant monies received by it.

5.3

The Recipient shall keep all invoices, receipts, and accounts and any other
relevant documents relating to the expenditure of the Grant, Additional Funding or
Matched Funding for a period of at least seven years following receipt of any
monies to which they relate. The Funder shall have the right to review, at the
Funder's reasonable request, the Recipient's accounts and records that relate to
the expenditure of the Grant and shall have the right to take copies of such
accounts and records.

5.4

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a copy of its annual accounts within
six months (or such lesser period as the Funder may reasonably require) of the
end of the relevant financial year in respect of each year in which the Grant is paid.

5.5

The Recipient shall comply and facilitate the Funder's compliance with all statutory
requirements as regards to accounts, audit or examination of accounts, annual
reports and annual returns applicable to itself and the Funder.

AF
T

5.1

D
R

6.

Should any part of the Grant remain unspent at the end of the Grant Period, the
Recipient shall ensure that any unspent monies are returned to the Funder or, if
agreed in writing by the Funder, shall be entitled to retain the unspent monies to
use for purposes as agreed between the parties.

MONITORING AND REPORTING
6.1

6.2

The Recipient shall on request provide the Funder or its auditors with such further
information, explanations and documents as the Funder may reasonably require in
order for it to establish that the Grant has been used properly in accordance with
this Agreement.
The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder or its auditors
such reasonable access to its employees, agents, premises, facilities and records,
for the purpose of discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fulfilment
of the conditions of this Agreement and shall, if so required, provide appropriate
oral or written explanations from them.

FI

N

6.3

The Recipient shall closely monitor the delivery and success of the Project
throughout the Grant Period to ensure that the aims and objectives of the Project
are being met and that this Agreement is being adhered to.

AL

5.

4.6

6.4

The Recipient shall permit any person authorised by the Funder to visit the
Recipient once every quarter to monitor the delivery of the Project. Where, in its
reasonable opinion, the Funder considers that additional visits are necessary to
monitor the Project, it shall be entitled to authorise any person to make such visits
on its behalf.

6.5

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a final report on completion of the
Grant Period which shall confirm whether and to what extent the Project has been
successfully and properly completed in accordance with the Outcome and include
details on how funding received was allocated across the Project.
Quarterly Financial and Operational Report

6.6

The Recipient shall provide the Funder with a financial report and an operational
report on its use of the Grant or any Matched Funding and delivery of the Project
every quarter and in such formats as the Funder may reasonably require. The
10

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
Recipient will provide a template format for such report which details reporting
requirements for the Funders approval. The Recipient shall provide the Funder
with each report within three months of the last day of the quarter to which it
relates or at any such other intervals as required by the Funder.

6.8

Along with its first quarterly financial report, the Recipient shall provide the Funder
with a risk register and insurance review in the format provided by the Funder. The
Recipient shall, amongst others, address the health and safety of its staff in the
risk register.

7.1

The Recipient shall not publish any material referring to the Funder or the Grant
without the prior written agreement of the Funder.

7.2

The Recipient agrees to participate in and cooperate with promotional activities
(including any use of required logos) relating to the Project that may be instigated,
organised or otherwise required by the Funder.

7.3

The Funder may acknowledge the Recipient's involvement in the Project as
appropriate without prior notice or the Recipient’s consent.

7.4

The Recipient shall comply with all reasonable requests from the Funder to
facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs and case studies that will
assist the Funder in its promotional and fundraising activities relating to the
Project.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS
8.1

The Funder and the Recipient agree that all rights, title and interest in or to any
information, data, reports, documents, procedures, forecasts, technology,
Know-How and any other Intellectual Property Rights whatsoever owned by either
the Funder or the Recipient before the Commencement Date or developed by
either party during the Grant Period, shall remain the property of that party.
Where the Funder has provided the Recipient with any of its Intellectual Property
Rights for use in connection with the Project (including without limitation its name
and logo), the Recipient shall, on termination of this Agreement, cease to use such
Intellectual Property Rights immediately and shall either return or destroy such
Intellectual Property Rights as requested by the Funder.

N

8.2

9.

AF
T

PUBLICITY

D
R

8.

The Recipient shall keep informed of any changes to funding terms of any
third-party funding (for example any Additional Funding or Matched Funding) and
will, as part of the financial report and operational report, disclose any changes to
the Funder. Where the Funder becomes aware of any such changes in funding
terms it shall inform the Recipient where it is practicable and permissible to do so.

AL

7.

6.7

CONFIDENTIALITY
Subject to clause 10 (Freedom of Information), each party shall during the term of
this Agreement and thereafter keep secret and confidential all Intellectual Property
Rights or Know-How or other business, technical or commercial information
disclosed to it as a result of this Agreement and shall not disclose the same to any
person save to the extent necessary to perform its obligations in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement or save as expressly authorised in writing by the other
party.

FI

9.1

9.2

The obligation of confidentiality contained in this clause shall not apply or shall
cease to apply to any Intellectual Property Rights, Know-How or other business,
technical or commercial information which:
9.2.1

at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party is already in the public
domain or which subsequently enters the public domain other than by
breach of the terms of this Agreement by the receiving party;

9.2.2

is already known to the receiving party as evidenced by written records
at the time of its disclosure by the disclosing party and was not otherwise
11

Page 60

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
acquired by the receiving party from the disclosing party under any
obligations of confidence; or
9.2.3

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
10.1

The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder is subject to the requirements of the
Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the Environmental Information
Regulations 2004 (EIRs).

10.2

The Recipient shall:

transfer to the Funder all requests for information relating to this
Agreement that it receives as soon as practicable and in any event within
two (2) working days of receipt;

10.2.3

provide the Funder with a copy of all information belonging to the Funder
requested in the request for information which is in its possession or
control in the form that the Funder requires within five (5) working days
(or such other period as the Funder may reasonably specify) of the
Funder's request for such information; and

10.2.4

not respond directly to a request for information unless authorised in
writing to do so by the Funder.

AF
T

10.2.2

The Recipient acknowledges that the Funder may be required under the FOIA and
EIRs to disclose information without consulting or obtaining consent from the
Recipient. The Funder shall take reasonable steps to notify the Recipient of a
request for information (in accordance with the Secretary of State's section 45
Code of Practice on the Discharge of the Functions of Public Authorities under
Part 1 of the FOIA) to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practicable
for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the
Funder shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any
information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA and/or the
EIRs.

DATA PROTECTION

N

11.

provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably
requested by the Funder to enable the Funder to comply with its
obligations under the FOIA and EIRs;

AL

10.3

10.2.1

D
R

10.

is at any time after the date of this Agreement acquired by the receiving
party from a third party having the right to disclose the same to the
receiving party without breach of the obligations owed by that party to the
disclosing party.

Both Parties will comply with all applicable requirements of and all their obligations under
the Data Protection Legislation which arise in connection with the Agreement.
WITHHOLDING, SUSPENDING AND REPAYMENT OF GRANT

FI

12.

12.1

The Funder's intention is that the Grant will be paid to the Recipient in full.
However, without prejudice to the Funder's other rights and remedies, the Funder
may at its discretion withhold or suspend payment of the Grant and/or require
repayment of all or part of the Grant if:
12.1.1

the Recipient uses the Grant or any Additional Funding or Matched
Funding for purposes other than those for which it has been awarded;

12.1.2

the delivery of the Project does not start within 6 months of the
Commencement Date and the Recipient has failed to provide the Funder
with a reasonable explanation for the delay;

12.1.3

the Funder considers that the Recipient has not made satisfactory
progress with the delivery of the Project or the Outcomes;

12.1.4

the Recipient is, in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, delivering the
Project in a negligent manner;
12

Page 61

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
12.1.5

the Recipient obtains duplicate funding from a third party for the Project;

12.1.6

the Recipient obtains funding from a third party which, in the reasonable
opinion of the Funder, undertakes activities that are likely to bring the
reputation of the Project or the Funder into disrepute;

12.1.7

the Recipient provides the Funder with any materially misleading or
inaccurate information;

12.1.8

the Recipient commits or committed a Prohibited Act;

12.1.9

any member of the governing body, employee or volunteer of the
Recipient has (a) acted dishonestly or negligently at any time and directly
or indirectly to the detriment of the Project or (b) taken any actions which,
in the reasonable opinion of the Funder, bring or are likely to bring the
Funder's name or reputation into disrepute;

12.1.11

AF
T

12.1.10 the Recipient ceases to operate for any reason, or it passes a resolution
(or any court of competent jurisdiction makes an order) that it be wound
up or dissolved (other than for the purpose of a bona fide and solvent
reconstruction or amalgamation);
the Recipient becomes insolvent, or it is declared bankrupt, or it is placed
into receivership, administration or liquidation, or a petition has been
presented for its winding up, or it enters into any arrangement or
composition for the benefit of its creditors, or it is unable to pay its debts
as they fall due;

D
R

12.1.12 the Recipient fails to comply with any of the terms and conditions set out
in this Agreement and fails to rectify any such failure within 30 days of
receiving written notice detailing the failure; or
12.1.13 where applicable, the Recipient fails to provide the Funder with evidence
that it has obtained any applicable Additional Funding or Matched
Funding or the Funder is otherwise not satisfied of the terms of such
Additional Funding or Matched Funding.

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

FI

13.

Should the Recipient be subject to financial or other difficulties which are capable
of having a material impact on its effective delivery of the Project or compliance
with this Agreement it will notify the Funder as soon as possible so that, if possible,
and without creating any legal obligation, the Funder will have an opportunity to
provide assistance in resolving the problem or to take action to protect the Funder
and the Grant monies.

N

12.3

The Funder may retain or set off any sums owed to it by the Recipient which have
fallen due and payable against any sums due to the Recipient under this
Agreement or any other agreement pursuant to which the Recipient provides
goods or services to the Funder.

AL

12.2

14.

13.1

The Recipient shall not unlawfully discriminate within the meaning and scope of
any law, enactment, order, or regulation relating to discrimination (whether in race,
gender, religion, disability, sexual orientation, age or otherwise) in employment or
otherwise.

13.2

The Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of clause
13.1 by all servants, employees or agents of the Recipient and all suppliers and
subcontractors engaged on the Project.

HUMAN RIGHTS
14.1

The Recipient shall (and shall use its reasonable endeavours to procure that its
staff shall) at all times comply with the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 in
the performance of this Agreement as if the Recipient were a public body (as
defined in the Human Rights Act 1998).

13

Page 62

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
14.2

15.1

The Funder accepts no liability for any consequences, whether direct or indirect,
that may come about from the Recipient running the Project, the use of the Grant
or from withdrawal of the Grant. The Recipient shall indemnify and hold harmless
the Funder, its employees, agents, officers or subcontractors with respect to all
claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses, losses, damages and all other
liabilities arising from or incurred by reason of the actions and/or omissions of the
Recipient in relation to the Project, the non-fulfilment of obligations of the Recipient
under this Agreement or its obligations to third parties.

15.2

Subject to clause 15.1, the Funder's liability under this Agreement is limited to the
payment of the Grant.

AF
T

16.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

WARRANTIES

The Recipient warrants, undertakes and agrees that:
16.1.1

it has all necessary resources, approvals, powers and expertise to
deliver the Project (assuming due receipt of the Grant);

16.1.2

it has not committed, nor shall it commit, any Prohibited Act;

16.1.3

it shall at all times comply with all relevant legislation and all applicable
codes of practice and other similar codes or recommendations, and shall
notify the Funder immediately of any significant departure from such
legislation, codes or recommendations;

16.1.4

it shall comply with the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work
etc. Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations and codes of
practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to employees and
other persons working on the Project;

16.1.5

it has and shall keep in place adequate procedures for dealing with any
conflicts of interest;

AL

16.1

D
R

15.

The Recipient shall undertake, or refrain from undertaking, such acts as the
Funder requests so as to enable the Funder to comply with its obligations under
the Human Rights Act 1998.

it has and shall keep in place systems to deal with the prevention of
fraud and/or administrative malfunction;

16.1.7

all financial and other information concerning the Recipient which has
been disclosed to the Funder is to the best of its knowledge and belief,
true and accurate;

N

16.1.6

FI

16.1.8

16.1.9

it is not subject to any contractual or other restriction imposed by its own
or any other organisation's rules or regulations or otherwise which may
prevent or materially impede it from meeting its obligations in connection
with the Grant;
it is not aware of anything in its own affairs, which it has not disclosed to
the Funder or any of the Funder's advisers, which might reasonably have
influenced the decision of the Funder to make the Grant on the terms
contained in this Agreement; and

16.1.10 since the date of its last accounts there has been no material change in
its financial position or prospects.
17.

INSURANCE
17.1

The Recipient shall effect and maintain with a reputable insurance company a
policy or policies in respect of all risks which may be incurred by the Recipient,
arising out of the Recipient's performance of the Agreement, including death or
personal injury, loss of or damage to property or any other loss (the Required
Insurances).

17.2

The Required Insurances referred to above include (but are not limited to):
14

Page 63

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
17.2.1

public liability insurance with a limit of indemnity of not less than five
million pounds (£5,000,000) in relation to any one claim or series of
claims arising from the Project; and

17.2.2

employer's liability insurance with a limit of indemnity of not less than five
million pounds (£5,000,000) in relation to any one claim or series of
claims arising from the Project.

The Recipient shall (on request) supply to the Funder a copy of such insurance
policies and evidence that the relevant premiums have been paid.

19.

DURATION
18.1

Except where otherwise specified, the terms of this Agreement shall apply from the
date of this Agreement until the anniversary of expiry of the Grant Period or for so
long as any Grant monies remain unspent by the Recipient, whichever is longer.

18.2

Any obligations under this Agreement that remain unfulfilled following the expiry or
termination of the Agreement shall survive such expiry or termination and continue
in full force and effect until they have been fulfilled.

AF
T

18.

TERMINATION

The Funder may terminate this Agreement and any Grant payments on giving the Recipient
three months' written notice should it be required to do so by financial restraints or for any
other reason.
20.

ASSIGNMENT

21.

D
R

The Recipient may not, without the prior written consent of the Funder, assign, transfer,
sub-contract, or in any other way make over to any third party the benefit and/or the burden
of this Agreement or, except as contemplated as part of the Project, transfer or pay to any
other person any part of the Grant.
WAIVER

No failure or delay by either party to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement
shall be construed as a waiver of any other right or remedy.
NOTICES

AL

22.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

FI

23.

N

All notices and other communications in relation to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered, e-mailed, or mailed (first
class postage prepaid) to the address of the relevant party, as referred to above or
otherwise notified in writing. If personally delivered or if e-mailed all such communications
shall be deemed to have been given when received (except that if received on a
non-working day or after 5.00 pm on any working day they shall be deemed received on the
next working day) and if mailed all such communications shall be deemed to have been
given and received on the second working day following such mailing.
23.1

In the event of any complaint or dispute (which does not relate to the Funder's right
to withhold funds or terminate) arising between the parties to this Agreement in
relation to this Agreement the matter should first be referred for resolution to the
Funder Representative or any other individual nominated by the Funder from time
to time.

23.2

Should the complaint or dispute remain unresolved within 14 days of the matter
first being referred to the Funder Representative or other nominated individual, as
the case may be, either party may refer the matter to the Director of Law and
Democracy and the Section 151 Officer of the Funder and the Chair of the
Recipient with an instruction to attempt to resolve the dispute by agreement within
28 days, or such other period as may be mutually agreed by the Funder and the
Recipient.

23.3

In the absence of agreement under clause 23.2, the parties may seek to resolve
the matter through mediation under the CEDR Model Mediation Procedure (or
15

Page 64

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
such other appropriate dispute resolution model as is agreed by both parties).
Unless otherwise agreed, the parties shall bear the costs and expenses of the
mediation equally.
24.

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY
This Agreement shall not create any partnership or joint venture between the Funder and
the Recipient, nor any relationship of principal and agent, nor authorise any party to make or
enter into any commitments for or on behalf of the other party.

25.

JOINT AND SEVERAL LIABILITY
Where the Recipient is not a company nor an incorporated entity with a distinct legal
personality of its own, the individuals who enter into and sign this Agreement on behalf of
the Recipient shall be jointly and severally liable for the Recipient's obligations and liabilities
arising under this Agreement.
CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

AF
T

26.

This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any contractual benefit on any
person pursuant to the terms of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.
27.

GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England
and the parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts.
28.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

FI

N

AL

D
R

This Agreement (together with all documents attached to or referred to within it) constitutes
the entire agreement and understanding between the parties in relation to the Grant and
supersedes any previous agreement or understanding between them in relation to such
subject matter.

16

Page 65

Agenda Item 7
Annex 1
Schedule 1 – Ineligible Expenditure
Any and each of the following:

D
R

AF
T

Costs incurred prior to commencement date of the offer letter
Funding core costs of an organisation (i.e. existing staff)
Payments for activity of a political nature
Payments for activity of a religious nature
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of assets
Provisions
Contingent liabilities
Contingencies
Profit made by the applicant
Dividends
Investments
Interest charges
Service charges arising on finance leases, hire purchase and credit arrangements
Costs involved in winding up a company
Payments for unfair dismissal
Payments into private pension schemes
Payments for unfunded pensions
Compensation for loss of office
Bad debts
Payments for gifts and donations
Entertainments
Reclaimable VAT
Statutory fines and penalties
Criminal fines and damages
Legal expenses in respect of litigation
Alcohol
Travel that is not the most economical form of transport to a meeting/destination
Overnight accommodation not sought at the most economical rates

FI

N

AL

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

17

Page 66

Agenda Item 8
Representation on an Executive Appointed Outside Body for
2022/23 - Manston Skills and Employment (MSE) Board
Cabinet

28 April 2022

Report Author

Committee Service Manager

Portfolio Holder

The Leader of Council

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
This report informs Cabinet of the Leader’s choice of an appointment to the Manston Skills
and Employment (MSE) Board, an Executive outside body.

Recommendation(s):
That Cabinet agrees to appoint Councillor Reece Pugh to the Manston Skills and
Employment (MSE) Board.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no financial implications arising directly arising from this report.
Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Corporate
The Council appoints representatives to outside bodies in order to express the views of the
Council to those bodies on the work they undertake, and to feed back to the Council issues
emerging from those bodies that relate to Council activities.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and

Page 67

Agenda Item 8
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: (Delete as appropriate)
●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

No implications arise directly but the Council needs to retain a strong focus and
understanding on issues of diversity amongst the local community and ensure service
delivery matches these.
It was important to be aware of the Council’s responsibility under the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration has been given to the equalities
impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made by Council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●

Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

It was agreed at the meeting of Council on 24 February 2011 that any list of outside
bodies would be split into two lists: those outside bodies that relate to an Executive
function and hence should be appointed by the Cabinet and those that are appointed
by Council.

1.2

It is for Council to decide on those outside bodies it feels relate to an Executive
function and hence should have a Cabinet Member appointed to them, but for
Cabinet to agree the nominations to those outside bodies.

1.3

The Leader’s delegated powers were amended to allow them to propose their
nominations for the Executive outside bodies to the Cabinet.

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

Council agreed to add Manston Skills and Employment (MSE) Board to the list of
Executive outside bodies and the number of Councillors to be appointed to it, as
described at paragraph 1.2 of this report at its meeting on 14 October 2021.

Page 68

Agenda Item 8
2.3

Cabinet is the decision making body only for making nominations to existing Bodies
agreed by Council. Any newly proposed Outside Bodies would need to be agreed at
Full Council.

Contact Officer: Charles Hungwe, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Reporting to: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Annex List
None
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance:
Legal:

Page 69

This page is intentionally left blank

